
 
Kershaw County Planning and Zoning Commission 

Regular Session Minutes – January 13, 2025, 5:30 PM  
County Council Chambers 

515 Walnut Street, Camden, SC 29020 
 
 
Members in Attendance: Ned Towell, Heather Dykes, Jonathan Proctor, Robert Horton, Mason Wolfe and 
Christopher Renfroe 
Members Attending Remotely: Lanny Gunter 
Members Absent: None 
Staff in Attendance: Joey Adams-Raczkowski, and John Dubose 
 
Call to Order and Determination of Quorum, and Election of Chairman 
County attorney John Dubose, called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 
 
John Dubose called for a determination of quorum for the election of chairman of the Planning Commission for 
the 2025 year. Mr. DuBose opened the floor for nominations for chairman. Christopher Renfroe made a motion 
for Ned Towell to be elected chairman. Jonathan Procter seconded the motion. Hearing no additional 
nominations he closed the nominations and proceeded with the voting, resulting in a 6:0 vote to approve the 
motion.  
 
Mr. DuBose turned the meeting over to Chairman Towell to proceed with the nomination for vice chairman. 
Robert Horton made a motion to nominate Heather Dykes as vice chairwoman. Ned Towell seconded the 
motion. After hearing no additional nominations, Mr. Towell closed the nomination and proceeded with the 
voting, resulting in a 6:0 vote to approve the motion.  
 
Mr. Towell proceeded with the nomination for Planning Commission secretary. Rhonda Darity was nominated to 
remain secretary. The motion passed favorably 6:0. 
 
Report on Compliance with Freedom of Information Act 
Planning Director, Joey Adams-Raczkowski, reported that the agenda and supporting materials were made 
available online on the Planning and Zoning Department website as well as the Kershaw County Events 
Calendar in accordance with the Planning Commission Rules of Procedure.   
 
Adoption of Agenda 
Chairman Towell called for a motion to adopt the agenda. Mr. Procter made a motion to adopt the agenda. 
Seconded by Mrs. Dykes, and all voted to approve.  
 
Chairman Towell used the Chairman’s Prerogative to move Item D under New Business to after the General 
Public Comment Period. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Chairman Towell stated that the minutes for the December 9, 2024 regular meeting had been distributed 
electronically. He asked if there were any additions, corrections, or deletions to the minutes. Hearing none, 
Chairman Towell asked for a motion to approve the December 9, 2024 minutes. Mr. Renfroe made a motion to 
approve the minutes. Mrs. Dykes seconded the motion and all voted to approve.  
 
General Public Comment Period - None 
 
New Business 

515 Walnut Street, Room 160 Camden, SC  29020 803-425-7233 Fax 803-424-5268 
www.kershaw.sc.gov  

                                                                           
 
Minutes Approved 2.4.2025 



 
Amendments to Commission’s Rules of Procedures: Remote Participation/Voting and Secretary 
Appointment  
Chairman Towell stated the contents of the proposed amendment to the Commission’s Rules of Procedures. Mr. 
Towell opened up for discussion and questions. Mr. Proctor asked Joey Adams-Raczkowski if the proposed 
changes would affect staff’s procedures and operations. Mr. Renfroe asked if instead of striking the Planning 
Director and adding Secretary, to unstrike Planning Director and adding “and/or” would work more 
appropriately. “Planning Director” was proposed to be unstruck, leaving the amendment language stating  
"Planning Director or Secretary”. Mr. Procter made a motion to approve the proposed amendments as amended. 
Seconded by Mr. Towell, and all voted to approve.  
 
Upon approving the amendments stated above, Lanny Gunter was called and attended the meeting remotely and  
to vote as required.  
 
Case 25-01a and 25-01b: Magnolia Woods Subdivision. 
Chairman Towell introduced the case and opened the public hearing. 
 
Joey Adams-Raczkowski clarified to the planning commission the unique nature of these two cases and that the 
exception would need to be granted in order for the subdivision to move forward, but both cases would need to 
be presented simultaneously to give greater context to the case. 
 
Patrick Livingston of Civil Engineering of Columbia as well as DR Horton Homes on behalf of property owners 
Carl and Jason Reynolds gave a presentation on the proposed subdivision and the request for exception by the 
Planning Commission. Mr. Livingston asked the commission to consider granting the exception to utilize 
existing SCDOT road frontage to directly access 13 out of the 37 total proposed lots within the major 
subdivision request. He stated that the configuration of the lot had such a large amount of SCDOT road frontage 
as well as the presence of wetlands and streams. These conditions gave them the opportunity to design the 
subdivision to have lots accessing directly from the SCDOT roads, and to not disturb the wetlands and stream 
with a crossing. After his presentation, Mr. Livingston opened the presentation up for discussion and questions 
from the commission.  
 
The commission members asked about the sidewalks and interconnectivity of the proposed subdivision. 
Sidewalks were not proposed on the submitted sketch plan and sidewalks would not be installed for the lots 
accessing the SCDOT roads. Mr. Livingston replied that sidewalks would be added to the internal roads in the 
construction documents phase if able to proceed. Questions were asked about the size and location of the 
wetlands, and location of the detention ponds and required buffer areas, which Mr. Livingston responded to.   
 
The commission members inquired about the driveways and driveway spacing for the lots accessing the SCDOT 
roads. Mr. Renfroe stated that the SCDOT driveway spacing  requirement appeared to be 325 feet which the 
proposed lots would not meet. Mr. Livingston responded that they have already reached out to SCDOT and the 
comments they received back were in regard to the driveway spacing and they would shift as required.  
 
Mrs. Dykes inquired about the threshold for requiring a Traffic Impact Study report be generated. The 
subdivision proposal is for 37 lots, and the threshold is 40 lots or more. Commission members inquired if that 
number could be changed, Mr. Adams-Raczkowski stated that the commission could amend the procedures to 
where any Major Subdivision would require a Traffic Impact Study.  
 
Mr. Proctor asked Mr. Adams-Raczkowski what staff’s opinion is for the exception. Mr. Adams-Raczkowski 
responded that while the applicants have made some justifications for the exception, the Planning Commission 
has historically not accepted any exceptions based on environmental issues. He stated the current configuration 
allows the developer to have more lots and that other developments that have been approved have had similar 
issues regarding wetlands which have internal roads. He stated that if approved, the commission would be 
changing how the processes have been handled historically. Mr. Horton asked if accepting this exception would 

515 Walnut Street, Room 160 Camden, SC  29020 803-425-7233 Fax 803-424-5268 
www.kershaw.sc.gov  

                                                                           
 
Minutes Approved 2.4.2025 



 
set a precedent, and Mr. Adams-Raczkowski and Mr. DuBose clarified that the nature of an exception is that it's 
an exception based on its own merits and unique circumstances.  
 
Mr. Livingston stated that the proposed subdivision meets the County’s requirement for minimum lot size and 
that the property has nearly ¾ of a mile of SCDOT street frontage which makes this piece of property unique to 
where they are asking for the exception. The commission members asked if other options to access the property 
through internal streets were explored, with Mr. Livingston stating that there were no other considerations for 
the configuration of the subdivision proposal.  
 
Mr. Renfroe clarified his point that if this exception was granted, it would be against what the ZLDR requires in 
regard to sidewalks and subdivision accessibility, landscaping buffers, and driveway spacing. Commission 
members asked if the exception was not granted, how many lots would be lost in the plan, with Mr. Livingston 
stating that they do not know at this time. Josh Rabon of Civil Engineering of Columbia stepped up to answer 
the question that they would lose all the road frontage lots and emphasized the unique nature of the lot and their 
intent to not disturb the existing wetlands with a stream crossing by configuring the subdivision in the way it 
was presented.  
 
Commission members asked Mr. Adams-Raczkowski and Mr. DuBose questions in regard to major vs minor 
subdivision submissions and if the internally accessed lots could be approved, and at a later point the road front 
lots be involved in a minor subdivision process. Staff clarified that the whole parcel is considered in regard to 
the major subdivision process and any changes that happened later would come before the Commission as a 
major modification of the plan.  
 
After no further discussion, Chairman Towell called for a motion. Mr. Proctor made a motion to deny the 
exception. Mr. Wolfe seconded the motion. Prior to the vote, commission members opened for discussion. Mr. 
Proctor stated that the reason he is voting to deny is to follow historical precedence for internal streets and 
insufficient reason to grant the exception, in addition to the Planning and Zoning staff recommendation. Mr. 
Wolfe concurred with the prior point made by Mr. Proctor and added the issue of no sidewalks connecting the 
road front lots. Mr. Renfroe cited Article 5:3.14 sidewalks and paths being required for each lot in a major group 
development in addition to the aforementioned reasons. After the conclusion of discussion, Mr. Towell called for 
a vote. Mr. Wolfe, Mr. Renfroe, Mr. Towell and Mr. Proctor voted to deny the exception. Mrs. Dykes and Mr. 
Horton voted to approve the exception. Mr. Gunter voted remotely to approve the exception. The exception was 
denied with a 4:3 vote. 
 
Mr. Renfroe made a motion to deny Case 25-01b on the ground that the exception Case 25-01a was denied. Mr. 
Proctor seconded the motion and all voted to approve.  
 
Case 25-02: Bear Creek Major Subdivision 
Chairman Towell introduced the case and opened the public hearing. 
 
Allan Goff of Kimley Horn reintroduced the case to the planning commission and stated the differences in the 
current submission in contrast to the previously denied subdivision. He stated that largely the plan remains the 
same besides the location of the subdivision entrance being moved from the northern part of the parcel towards 
the wetlands and special flood hazard areas, to the southern portion of the parcel.  
 
Mr. Towell inquired about the status of the analysis that was to be submitted to the Planning Official 
demonstrating that no economically feasible alternative was available to avoid the proposed stream crossings. 
Back and forth discussion was had about the topic and it was determined that no formal analysis was submitted. 
Mr. Goff stated though that the stream crossing was absolutely required to obtain fire protection access to the 30 
lots and the overall project is not feasible without this access across the stream.  
 

515 Walnut Street, Room 160 Camden, SC  29020 803-425-7233 Fax 803-424-5268 
www.kershaw.sc.gov  

                                                                           
 
Minutes Approved 2.4.2025 



 
Mr. Proctor asked Mr. Adams-Raczkowski about the staff opinion. Mr. Adams-Raczkowski confirmed that fire 
access is needed for the 30 lots, and emphasized that he is not a wetlands scientist or engineer, therefore he 
would not be the approval authority for the stream crossing, and would be the Army Corp of Engineers 
authority. He continued that the approval and analysis of wetlands would fall under the construction documents 
stage. Mr. Proctor asked for the historical precedence with not requiring an analysis for the sketch plan and 
planning commission approval, and Mr. Adams-Raczkowski stated that there is a precedence with allowing 
other subdivisions to move forward without the analysis at this stage.  
 
Mr. Renfore stated that the narrative provided did cover a majority of the concerns that were presented in the 
previous planning commission case, but did not adequately address Article 5:3.6-2 Disturbance of Buffers, 
Section B, Item 5.a; an analysis is submitted to the Planning Official demonstrating that no economically 
feasible alternative is available. Mr. Renfroe continued stating that the preservation of trees and landscape 
buffers and protecting the environment and environmentally sensitive areas was a priority for Kershaw County. 
Mr. Goff informed the commission that DR Horton is providing a conservation easement in the floodplains and 
wetland areas to the north of the subdivision to not be open space, but a full conservation easement where 
nothing could be done on that section in perpetuity. The parcel was previously timbered in the past, and that 
would no longer be allowed due to the conservation easement. Mr. Towell asked staff what the wetlands and 
stream buffer requirements are. Mr. Adams-Raczkowski replied that it is 50 feet from top of bank for 
intermittent streams, 100 feet from top of bank for perennial streams, and a 30 foot buffer for wetlands.  
 
Mr. Wolfe asked for clarification on the scenario if the commission approved the sketch plan presented, and the 
applicant ran into issues with getting an approved environmental analysis of the site, would the sketch plan need 
to be redone and presented back to the commission. Staff stated that if that was the case, the plan would have to 
come back before the commission. Staff continued to clarify that the environmental analysis is done for all 
project submissions at a later stage in the process, not at the sketch plan phase typically.  
 
Mr. Goff informed the commission that without the stream crossing, the subdivision in its current layout is not 
feasible due to the need for a fire access road to access the lots to the east side of the property.  
 
Mr. Renfroe made a motion to conditionally approve the sketch plan, provided the applicant provides an 
economically feasible analysis addressed in 5:3.6-2 Disturbance of Buffers, Section B, Item 5.a. Mr. Proctor 
seconded the motion. Prior to the vote, commission members opened for discussion.  
 
Mrs. Dykes stated that the Army Corp of Engineers will do their analysis and if they do not approve of the 
stream crossings, a major modification to the plans will need to be brought to the planning commission for 
approval. Mrs. Dykes asked for clarification as to what the economically feasible analysis would need to 
contain. Mr. Towell asked staff opinion on what type of document has been submitted and accepted historically 
to satisfy Item 5.a. Mr. Adams-Raczkowski stated that we have not historically received or required an 
economically feasible analysis document at this stage. Mr. Proctor asked if the condition proposed by Mr. 
Renfroe would be accomplished regardless, with Mr. Goff and staff confirming. Mr. Proctor asked if Mr. 
Renfroe wanted the commission to be the authority to approve of the analysis instead of staff, and Mr. Renfroe 
confirmed. Mr. Proctor confirmed that he had seconded the motion to the sketch plan with Mr. Renfroe’s 
aforementioned condition.  
 
Mr. Horton asked the commission if the applicants have made the changes the commission asked them to make. 
Mr. Towell and Mr. Renfroe stated yes except for the Item 5.a. Mr. Horton stated that the sketch plan should be 
approved without conditions.  ​
​
Mr. Goff asked the commission if there would be a deadline to submit the economic feasibility analysis to the 
commission and would that affect the planning commission document submission deadline. The commission 
stated they would discuss that if the motion to conditionally approve the plan was approved of. 
 

515 Walnut Street, Room 160 Camden, SC  29020 803-425-7233 Fax 803-424-5268 
www.kershaw.sc.gov  

                                                                           
 
Minutes Approved 2.4.2025 



 
The commission continued to discuss the inclusion of Item 5.a and the need to have it within the motion to be 
made. Mr. Towell asked if there were any staff conditions to add to the motion. Mr. Adams-Raczkowski clarified 
that the conditions included in the staff report were conditions that were suggested to the commission by staff 
and could be added to the motion if the commission approved of them. Mr. Renfroe withdrew his previous 
motion and placed a new motion to conditionally approve the project, to bring the commission the economic 
feasibility report at the next regularly scheduled meeting categorized under old business, and to include the 
considerations of planning staff. Mr. Proctor seconded the motion. Prior to the vote, Mr. Towell asked if any 
further discussion was to be had. Hearing none, Mr. Towell called for a vote. Mr. Renfroe, Mr. Towell, and Mr. 
Proctor voted to approve the motion. Mrs. Dykes, Mr. Horton, Mr. Gunter, and Mr. Wolfe voted to deny. The 
motion failed 3-4.  
 
Mr. Horton made a motion to approve the sketch plan as presented to include the considerations of planning 
staff. Mr. Wolfe seconded the motion. Mrs. Dykes, Mr. Wolfe, Mr. Proctor, Mr. Gunter and Mr. Horton voted to 
approve this motion. Mr. Renfroe and Mr. Towell voted against the motion. The motion passed 5-2.  
 
Committee Development: Formation of Strategic Growth Committee and Development Standards 
Committee and Commissioner committee assignments 
Chairman Towell opened the discussion about introducing two separate committees to be manned by 
commission members. The commission discussed the potential structure and purpose of these committees and 
what they would intend to accomplish. At the conclusion of discussion, Mr. Proctor made a motion to defer the 
item to the next meeting. Mr. Towell seconded the motion, and all voted in favor.  
 
Old Business -  
Notification of Pending Project Approval and Property Access for Kershaw County Planning Commission 
Mr. Towell introduced the item and opened it for discussion. Mr. Adams-Raczkowski informed the commission 
of the purpose of the document and requested the commission to vote to direct staff with implementation of the 
document. The commission asked staff clarifying questions regarding the purpose of the document, with staff 
responding in kind. Mr. Towell made a motion to direct staff to implement the process, Mrs. Dykes seconded the 
motion, with all voting in favor. 

 
Director’s Report​ ​ Legal Briefing 
None​ ​ ​ ​ None 
 
Adjournment 
The Chairman asked if there were any additional items to be brought up before the Commission. Hearing none, 
he asked for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Renfroe made the motion, Mr. Proctor seconded the motion, with all 
voting in favor. The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Rhonda Darity​  
Rhonda Darity, Secretary 

515 Walnut Street, Room 160 Camden, SC  29020 803-425-7233 Fax 803-424-5268 
www.kershaw.sc.gov  

                                                                           
 
Minutes Approved 2.4.2025 


